
Vestavia Hills 

City Council Agenda 

July 10, 2017 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – George Pierce 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance 

5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

6. City Manager’s Report 

7. Councilors’ Reports 

8. Approval of Minutes – June 26, 2017 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

9. Resolution Number 4957 – A Resolution To Replace The Current Firewall System With 

Heightened Security For Prevention Of Cyber Threats To The City Of Vestavia Hills 

Computer Systems And To Allow The City Manager To Retain An Additional IT 

Technician (public hearing) 

New Business 

10. Resolution Number 4963 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver An Estoppel Agreement With Vestavia MZL, LLC And An 

Assignment Agreement With Vestavia MZL, LLC, Excel Vestavia, LLC, and Vestavia 

Outparcel Holdings, LLC 

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

11. Resolution Number 4962 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager To Allocate 

Funding Within The Gas Tax Fund Budget For Fiscal Year 2016-2017 For Street 

Resurfacing And Repair (public hearing) 

12. Citizen Comments  

13. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 

June 26, 2017 

Page 1 

 

 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

MINUTES 

 

JUNE 26, 2017 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM.  The 

Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Kimberly Cook, Councilor 

      Paul Head, Councilor 

      George Pierce, Councilor  

 

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 

      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 

      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

      Dan Rary, Police Chief 

      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 

      Marvin Green, Interim Fire Chief 

      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 

      George Sawaya, Asst. Treasurer 

      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 

      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 

      Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 

 

 

 Donald Harwell, Citizen of Vestavia Hills, member of Vestavia Hills United Methodist 

Church, and the Vestavia Hills representative on the Birmingham-Jefferson County Transit 

Authority Board, provided the invocation, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  

 

 None. 

 

 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

 Mr. Downes gave an update on obtaining a certified list for the open Fire Chief III 

position from the Personnel Board of Jefferson County.  He stated the examination was 

administered by the personnel board last week and the City should receive a certified 



City Council Minutes 

June 26, 2017 

Page 2 

 

listing sometime in August.  He planned to put together a committee consisting of 

himself, Mayor Curry and Chief Rary for interviewing.  Mr. Downes stated that they 

would also be visiting all of the city’s fire stations and asking questions to determine 

what is needed in a new chief. 

 Mr. Downes stated that the budget process has begun.  Mr. Turner and the Finance 

Committee have submitted the revenue projections for next year.  He indicated they are 

based upon actual results and trends from the past several years.  The number one source 

of revenue within the City consists of collected ad valorem taxes.  Next year’s ad 

valorem projection is showing about a 4.5% growth. He reminded the Council that, even 

though the projections show a growth in revenues, the sanitation contract, which was bid 

this year, will increase about $500,000.  He stated he will soon be meeting with 

department heads and expects to present a draft budget to the Council on time.  He 

requested the Council communicate specific needs and priorities ahead of time so they 

can be addressed before the draft is submitted to the council at the August 14 council 

meeting. 

 Mr. Downes stated that the Community Spaces process has commenced.  Sub-

committees have held organizational meetings and minutes will be posted soon.  The 

committee will post the schedule of public meetings soon, and will create a webpage on 

the website for full communication to the public.  He presented to the Council a master 

schedule of all the meetings. 

 Mr. Downes updated the Council on the following projects: 

o The Willoughby sidewalk installation has stalled because of the recent rains.  

They have completed 600 linear feet which represents about a third of the 

project.  Project completion is scheduled for mid- to late-August. 

o The Sicard Hollow Pedestrian Tunnel project should begin as soon as the City 

gets the “notice to proceed” after which the City will begin the bidding process. 

o The Highway 31 Pedestrian Bridge had a final submission of plans to ALDOT 

who wanted reconsideration of handicapped accessibility.  They have asked the 

City to “stand down” until they can do a final revision.  He stated this 

requirement came from the highest levels of the department. 

o The Massey Road project is in final plan review through ALDOT and they plan 

to let bids sometime in August and September, which would put the project start 

during the winter months and might slow the prospective contractor’s work. 

o The City has actively pursued the APPLE grant study of Crosshaven Road and 

there is a progress meeting that will, hopefully, be followed by public meetings.  

o Jefferson County is the lead on the APPLE grant study of Acton Road.  Mr. 

Brady stated he doesn’t know where the County is in that reviewing process. 

 

Mrs. Cook asked about subcommittees’ meetings 2 and 3 of and whether these would be 

the only sub-committee meetings before the committee makes recommendations.  Mr. Downes 

explained the agenda for meetings 2 and 3. He stated that calling additional meetings will be up 

to the sub-committees and the committee chairman, Tommy Dazzio. 

 

Mrs. Cook asked about the status of the Green Valley sidewalk project.  Mr. Downes 

stated that the specifications are ready, but the funding for the design phase has been exhausted 

in this fiscal year. He will review the opportunities in the next fiscal year budget to address this 



City Council Minutes 

June 26, 2017 

Page 3 

 

project.  This site has storm drainage issues, which make construction costs high and the City is 

reviewing possible cost-saving measures to make this more affordable. 

 

Mr. Pierce asked for a whiteway lighting project update.  Mr. Downes stated they expect 

to sign contracts within the next day or so.  Work should begin as soon as the hardware is 

delivered. 

 

 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 

 

 Mrs. Cook stated that the Vestavia Hills Board of Education is meeting June 28, 2017, 

beginning at 6 PM.  The new board member will be installed. 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed James Robinson, representing the Chamber of Commerce Board.   

 Mr. Pierce announced the I Love America Day, on Thursday, June 29, at Wald Park, 

with lots of activities. 

 Mr. Weaver announced that the Council will soon take action on annexations and zoning 

issues which have been reviewed and approved by the Planning and Zoning 

Commission.  July 13 is the next meeting of the commission. 

 Mayor Curry stated he attended an International Business Summit hosted by the 

Birmingham Association of Realtors which covered information on a growing 

international business industry within the state, especially in the automotive industry, 

and what role cities can play in supporting this growth.  While Vestavia Hills doesn’t 

have available property for an industrial plant, the City offers “quality of life” 

opportunities for some of these employees that would increase demand in our real estate 

market. 

 The Mayor asked Donald Harwell to update the Council on the Birmingham Transit 

Authority. 

o Mr. Harwell stated that the new transit station opened last week and this Friday 

they will host a ribbon cutting at 2:00 PM.  He encouraged everyone to attend. 

He stated the Intermodal Station is set to open later. 

o Mr. Pierce stated that the Annexation Review Committee meeting, cancelled last 

week, will be held at 4:30 this Thursday. 

 

 

PRESENTATION – JEFFERSON-BLOUNT- 

SHELBY COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH AUTHORITY 

 

 Jim Crego, Jefferson-Blount-Shelby County Mental Health Authority, thanked the 

Council for past and continued support.  He presented information to the Council regarding the 

work that the authority does for residents of the City and acknowledged the three members of 

the board who represent Vestavia Hills. 

 

 Mr. Crego stated some of their project include an urgent care clinic which is located near 

Regions Field.  The facility is open ten hours each day, with a staff of four nurses and two 

therapists to treat people who have mental health needs.  People can get immediate services at 

the clinic without having to wait on appointments. 



City Council Minutes 

June 26, 2017 

Page 4 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 

 Mr. Turner presented the financial reports for the month ending May 2017.  He read and 

explained the balances. 

 

 Mrs. Cook asked about the deficit in the franchise fees collected this year.  Mr. Turner 

and Mr. Downes explained that Alagasco reports that consumption for natural gas has fallen; 

Alagasco is verifying the numbers to ensure that all gross receipts have been paid.  He stated 

that Mountain Brook has reported that their franchise revenue is down as well. 

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The minutes of the June 12, 2017, regular meeting were presented for approval. 

 

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of June 12, 2017 (regular 

meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mrs. Cook and second by Mr. 

Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

   Mayor Curry – yes   Motion carried. 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2711 

 

Ordinance 2711 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2419 Dolly Ridge Road; Jason and Stefanie 

Robinson  (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2711 was made by Mr. Weaver and 

second was by Mr. Pierce.  

 

 The Mayor stated that this is the 90-day final annexation of this property. 

 

 Mrs. Cook asked about the annexation review by city staff, which noted a drainage pipe 

problem.   

 

 Mr. Brady stated he understands the property owner did clear it but he hasn’t had an 

opportunity to re-inspect. 

 



City Council Minutes 

June 26, 2017 

Page 5 

 

 Mr. and Mrs. Robinson were present in regard to the request.  Mr. Robinson stated he 

has begun some renovations, but it has been slow going because of a personal injury and the 

weather. 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2712 

 

Ordinance 2712 – Rezoning – 2419 Dolly Ridge Road; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 

(Residential District) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (Residential District); Jason and 

Stefanie Robinson  (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2712 was made by Mr. Weaver and 

second was by Mrs. Cook.  

 

 The Mayor explained that this is the compatible zoning of the same property. 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 

follows: 

  Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

  Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

  Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2713 

 

Ordinance 2713 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2611 April Drive; Lot 9, Altadena Acres; 

Charles and Stephanie Langner  (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2713 was made by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Weaver.  

 

 Mr. and Mrs. Langner were present in regard to this request. 

 

 Mr. Pierce explained that all of these properties were annexed previously and this is a 

follow-up annexation process. 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  



City Council Minutes 

June 26, 2017 

Page 6 

 

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2714 

 

Ordinance 2714 – Rezoning – 2611 April Drive; Lot 9, Altadena Acres; Rezone From 

Jefferson County E-1 (Residential District) to Vestavia Hills E-2 (Residential 

District); Charles and Stephanie Langner  (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2714 was made by Mrs. Cook and second 

was by Mr. Weaver  

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 

follows: 

  Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

  Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

  Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2715 

 

Ordinance 2715 – Annexation – 90-Day – 3139 Renfro Road; Lot 9, Block 2, South 

Vestavia Estates; Pamela and Joey Snow  (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2715 was made by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Weaver.  

 

 Mr. and Mrs. Snow were present in regard to this request. 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2716 

 

Ordinance 2716 – Rezoning – 3139 Renfro Road; Lot 9, Block 2, South Vestavia Estates; 

Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 (Residential District) to Vestavia Hills R-2 

(Residential District); Pamela and Joey Snow  (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2716 was made by Mrs. Cook and second 

was by Mr. Head.  



City Council Minutes 

June 26, 2017 

Page 7 

 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 

follows: 

  Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

  Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

  Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2717 

 

Ordinance 2717 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2696 Altadena Road; Lot 1A, Resurvey of Lot 1, 

Altadena Park; Curtis and Lisa Martin  (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2717 was made by Mr. Weaver and 

second was by Mr. Pierce.  

 

 Mr. Martin was present in regard to this request. 

 

 Mr. Pierce pointed out the annexation review noted a problem with a collapsed pipe.  

Mr. Brady reported that the property owners have corrected the problem. 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2718 

 

Ordinance 2718 – Rezoning – 2696 Altadena Road; Lot 1A, Resurvey of Lot 1, Altadena 

Park; Rezone From Jefferson County E-1 (Residential District) to Vestavia Hills E-

2 (Residential District); Curtis and Lisa Martin  (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2718 was made by Mrs. Cook and second 

was by Mr. Head.  

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 

follows: 

  Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

  Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

  Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 



City Council Minutes 

June 26, 2017 

Page 8 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2719 

 

Ordinance 2719 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2470 Dolly Ridge Trail; Lot 5, Block 2, Dolly 

Ridge Estates; Matthew and Jessica Jones  (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2719 was made by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mrs. Cook.  

 

 Mr. Jones was present in regard to this request. 

 

 Mrs. Cook stated that there was a note of a problem in a drainage pipe and the asphalt of 

the circle.  Mr. Brady stated the drainage has been resolved and the pavement will be repaired 

when repaved. 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2720 

 

Ordinance 2720 – Rezoning – 2470 Dolly Ridge Trail; Lot 5, Block 2, Dolly Ridge Estates; 

Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 (Residential District) to Vestavia Hills R-1 

(Residential District); Matthew and Jessica Jones  (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2720 was made by Mrs. Cook and second 

was by Mr. Weaver.  

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 

follows: 

  Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

  Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

  Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4955 

 

Resolution Number 4955 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase 

Additional Handguns For The Police Department   (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4955 was made by Mr. Weaver and 

second was by Mr. Pierce.  

 



City Council Minutes 

June 26, 2017 

Page 9 

 

 Chief Rary explained that the police department has been endeavoring to purchase 

uniform handguns for use as both on- and off-duty weapons.  This request would be for 

concealed carry during off-duty times, since officers are encouraged to carry 24/7.  The 

purchase would be approximately $43,000, still leaving a substantial balance in confiscations 

revenue.  The purchase of these handguns is regulated by state law, meaning it is an item that 

does not have to be bid.  Each handgun purchase includes three magazines. 

 

 Mr. Weaver stated these handguns are purchased from a vendor and not directly from a 

manufacturer.  Chief Rary explained the state requires the department to purchase through a 

vendor, but that the vendor’s pricing is negotiated and regulated by the state. 

 

 Mr. Pierce explained that the purchase of uniform guns will aid the police department in 

providing ammunition for officers’ weapons. In the past, the department has provided 

ammunition, but not weapons, for off-duty use. Since a variety of personal guns were in off-

duty use, this made it a challenge to provide the appropriate ammunition. 

  

 Mr. Downes noted that our police department has never been more productive in 

confiscating illicit items. 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 

follows: 

  Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

  Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

  Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

REOLUTION NUMBER 4959 

 

Resolution Number 4959 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For Baha Burger, 

LLC D/B/A Baha Burger; Eric James Finney, Executive 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4959 was made by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mrs. Cook.  

 

 Mr. Pierce asked about the training of employees. 

 

 Eric Finney stated they are trained through the responsible vendor program which 

focuses in on the repercussions of sales to minors. 

 

 Mrs. Cook asked about the police review. 

 

 Mr. Downes stated that the police department reported no problems. 

 



City Council Minutes 

June 26, 2017 

Page 10 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

REOLUTION NUMBER 4960 

 

Resolution Number 4960 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For Monarcas 

Investments, Inc. D/B/A Los Rancheros Mexican Grill; Carlos J Blum, Executive 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4960 was made by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Head.  

 

 Carlos Blum was present in regard to the request. 

 

 Mr. Pierce asked about the training of employees. 

 

 Mr. Blum stated this is a family restaurant and they train all employees to carefully sell 

alcohol to avoid any sales to minors.  He indicated they follow all ABC regulations. 

 

 Mrs. Cook noted that the PD has found no problems with this request. 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

 

 

 

REOLUTION NUMBER 4961 

 

Resolution Number 4961 – A Resolution Determining That Certain Personal Property Is 

Not Needed For Public Or Municipal Purposes And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of 

Said Surplus Property 

 

 Mr. Downes explained that this is an older Dodge Durango that is no longer needed by 

the IT Department.  He stated it was replaced this year and needs to be sold. 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4961 was made by Mrs. Cook and second 

was by Mr. Weaver.  

 



City Council Minutes 

June 26, 2017 

Page 11 

 

 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 

called for the question. 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion for immediate consideration and action on 

Resolution Number 4958.  The Mayor stated that this was discussed at the last work session. 

 

MOTION Motion for unanimous consent and immediate consideration and action on 

Resolution Number 4958 was by Mr. Weaver.  Second was by Mrs. Cook. 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4958 

 

Resolution Number 4958 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Obtain 

Appraisal Services For Certain Areas Of Wald Park (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4958 was made by Mrs. Cook and second 

was by Mr. Weaver.  

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 

Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  

   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 

 The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a 

public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on July 10, 2017, at 6:00 PM. 

 Resolution Number 4957 – A Resolution To Replace The Current Firewall System 

With Heightened Security For Prevention Of Cyber Threats To The City Of Vestavia 

Hills Computer Systems And To Allow The City Manager To Retain An Additional IT 

Technician     (public hearing) 

  

 



City Council Minutes 

June 26, 2017 

Page 12 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

 None. 

 

 

 At 7:07 PM, Mrs. Cook made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Mr. Pierce.  The 

meeting adjourned at 7:08 PM. 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4957 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REPLACE THE CURRENT FIREWALL SYSTEM WITH 

HEIGHTENED SECURITY FOR  PREVENTION OF CYBER THREATS TO 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS COMPUTER SYSTEMS 
 

 WHEREAS, the City exists in a time of increased dependency on computer systems in 

day-to-day transactions, maintenance and protection of secured information and data which 

requires increased protections; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has annually budgeted for said protections in order to protect the 

City’s data  and recently enhanced protections to the extent of: 

1. Purchasing Cyber Liability Insurance; 

2. Implementing third-party software called “Umbrella”; 

3. Increased employee training, implementing a program through ”Threat 

Advice” in order to allow increased awareness of employees when 

utilizing the computer systems throughout the City; and 

WHEREAS, in an effort to minimize further the risk of a cyber breach of the City’s 

computer system, the City’s IT Director has recommended to the City in an Interoffice 

Memorandum dated June 19, 2017, that a replacement to the City’s firewall system was  needed  

at an estimated cost of $70,963.85, a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A” attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4957 as if it was written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, an additional interoffice memorandum dated June 19, 2017 from the IT 

Director to the City Manager indicated that an IT technician should be retained in order to assist 

the IT Department with the increasing IT demands of the City at an estimated $5,000 through the 

remainder of the current fiscal year, a copy of said memorandum is marked as “Exhibit B” and is 

attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4957 as though written fully therein; 

and 

 WHEREAS, in reviewing of the FY 2017 budget for the IT Department, the City 

Manager has recognized approximately $60,000 surplus leaving the net costs of said requests at 

approximately $16,000 additional dollars. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



1. The City Manager is authorized to expend the surplus recognized from the FY 2017 IT 

budget along with an additional $16,000 for the following: 

a. Replacement of the City’s firewall as described in Exhibit A; and 

b. Retaining an IT Technician as described in Exhibit B. 

2. This Resolution Number 4957 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 10
th

 day of July, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



VESTAVIA HILLS INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 
 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 

TO:  Jeff Downes, City Manager    
 
FROM:  Darrin Estes, Director of Information Technology 
  
DATE:  June 19, 2017 
  
RE:  New Firewall for internet\email  
 
Due to the multi‐faceted online cybersecurity risk, we need to replace our current firewall. 
(Hardly a week goes by without ransomware making the news.) 

I would like to replace our current firewall with an adaptive, threat‐focused next‐generation firewall 
(NGFW) designed for a new era of threat and advanced malware protection.  

Some of the featured comprehensive capabilities are: 

●   Site‐to‐site and remote access VPN and advanced clustering provide highly secure, high‐performance 
access and high availability to help ensure business continuity. 

●   Granular Application Visibility and Control (AVC) supports more than 4,000 application‐layer and risk‐
based controls that can launch tailored intrusion prevention system (IPS) threat detection policies to 
optimize security effectiveness. 

●   Next‐generation Intrusion Prevention (NGIPS) provides highly effective threat prevention and full 
contextual awareness of users, infrastructure, applications, and content to detect multivector threats 
and automate defense response. 

●   Reputation‐ and category‐based URL filtering offer comprehensive alerting and control over 
suspicious web traffic and enforce policies on hundreds of millions of URLs in more than 80 categories. 

● Advanced Malware Protection (AMP) provides industry‐leading breach detection effectiveness, and 
superior protection that helps discover, understand, and stop malware and emerging threats missed by 
other security layers. 

The cost to replace the firewall is $70,963.85. This includes the appliance, 3 year extended service 
agreement, 3 year license (state bid list). 

 

Exhibit A



VESTAVIA HILLS INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 

TO:  Jeff Downes, City Manager    
 
FROM:  Darrin Estes, Director of Information Technology 
  
DATE:  June 19, 2017 
  
RE:  New Information Technology personnel  
 
With all the projects we currently have on our schedule and the need to replace our current firewall, I 
would like to request the addition of a PC network technician at this time.  

With the addition of:  

• The new systems and added network requirements in the new municipal complex  
• The growth in the numbers of our mobile units and required equipment in the Police and Fire 

departments 
• The added workstations\laptops throughout the city  

Even without the projects and firewall replacement we are currently reactive not proactive to the day‐
to‐ day I.T. issues. 

 

For the additional fulltime PC network technician Grade 23/Step 1. The estimated annual wages with 
taxes and fringes would be $61,468. 

 

Exhibit B



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4963 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 

TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN ESTOPPEL AGREEMENT AND AN 

ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an estoppel 

agreement with Vestavia MZL, LLC, a copy is hereby marked as” Exhibit A,” and is 

attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4963 as though written fully 

therein; and 

2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an assignment 

agreement with Vestavia MZL, LLC, Excel Vestavia, LLC, and Vestavia Outparcel 

Holdings, LLC, a copy is hereby marked as” Exhibit B,” and is attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4963 as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4963 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 10
th

 day of July, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley Curry 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 



Resolution Number 4963 

Exhibit A 

 

 

ESTOPPEL 

 

 

Date:  July ___, 2017 

TO:  Vestavia MZL LLC, its successors and assigns and its lender and their successors and 

assigns 

 254 West 31st Street, 4
th

 Floor 

New York, NY 10001 

 

RE: Agreement dated October 22, 2001 by and between the City of Vestavia Hills and AIG 

Baker Vestavia L.L.C and AIG Baker Vestavia Shopping Center, L.L.C. (the 

“Agreement”) 

 

Capitalized terms used and not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them 

in the Agreement.   

 

 The undersigned, as the City of Vestavia Hills (the “Certifying Party”) hereby certifies, 

as of the date hereof, to Vestavia MZL LLC and its successors and assigns (“Purchaser”) and to 

its lender and its successors and assigns (“Lender”), with respect to a loan to Purchaser secured 

by the property commonly known as Vestavia Hills City Center, 700 Montgomery Highway, 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama (the “Property”), as follows: 

 

1. That the Agreement is unmodified or amended except as set forth above and in full force 

and effect; 

2. That there is no currently-existing default under the Agreement by Baker (as defined in 

the Agreement) in the payment of any sum of money owing to the Certifying Party or in 

the performance of any obligation required under the Agreement, including, without 

limitation, the restrictions contained in Exhibit D of the Agreement, and, to the Certifying 

Party’s actual knowledge, there is no currently-existing default by Baker under the 

Agreement, and, to the Certifying Party’s actual knowledge, no other event has occurred 

which with the giving of notice by the Certifying Party or the passage of time, or both, 

would become a default under the Agreement; 

3. That Baker has satisfactorily performed all Infrastructure work to be completed pursuant 

to the Agreement. 

4. That there are no sums which the Certifying Party is entitled to receive or demand from 

Baker under the Agreement;  

5. That the Certifying Party has not performed or caused to be performed, and is not 

currently performing or causing to be performed, any maintenance or other work or 

service not in the normal course of operation, the cost of which the Certifying Party is or 

will be entitled to charge in whole or in part to the Property owner which has not yet been 

charged to Baker; and 



 

6. That there are no set-offs, defenses or counterclaims currently being asserted or otherwise 

known by the Certifying Party against enforcement of any obligations under the 

Agreement which are to be performed by the Certifying Party. 

7. The Certifying Party acknowledges that Baker has a pylon signs located all or in part on 

the Property in those areas known as Phase I and Phase III and further acknowledges that 

Baker, its successors and assigns may maintain such pylon signs in their current 

locations. 

The Certifying Party acknowledges and agrees that the statements set forth herein shall 

be binding, and may be relied upon by and shall inure to the benefit of Purchaser, its successor 

and assigns and to Lender and its successor and assigns. 

 

 

[Signature page follows] 



 

CERTIFYING PARTY: 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

a municipal corporation 

 

 

By: ________________________ 

Name: 

Title: 



Resolution Number 4963 

Exhibit B 

 

DMS_US 39496191v2 

ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 

THIS ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT (the "Assignment") is entered into as of the ___ 

day of July, 2017, by and between VESTAVIA MZL LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 

("Assignee"), and EXCEL VESTAVIA, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and 

VESTAVIA OUTPARCEL HOLDINGS, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company 

("Assignor"). 

 

RECITALS 
 

A. Assignor was the owner of property known as Vestavia Hills City Center, 700 

Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama (the “Property”). 

B. Assignor conveyed the Property to Assignee by that certain Special Warranty Deed 

dated _________________ and recorded in the Jefferson County Land Records at Book ___, 

page _____.  

C. Assignor the successor in interest to that certain Agreement dated October 22, 2001 

by and between the City of Vestavia Hills and AIG Baker Vestavia L.L.C and AIG Baker 

Vestavia Shopping Center, L.L.C.  (as the same may have been amended the “Agreement”). 

D. Pursuant to Section 6.13 of the Agreement, in order to transfer Assignor’s rights, an 

assignment of those rights must be made and consented to by the City of Vestavia Hills. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Assignor hereby Assigns to Assignee, and Assignee hereby assumes from Assignor, 

all of Assignor's rights and obligations under the Agreement, and Assignee shall be bound by 

and subject to all of the covenants, conditions and restrictions imposed under the Agreement 

arising after the date hereof. 

2. This Assignment shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Alabama. 

3. This Assignment contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto and they 

shall not be bound by any terms, warranties or representations, oral or written, not herein 

contained with respect to the subject matter hereof. 

4. This Assignment shall be binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of, the parties 

hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 

5. This Assignment may be executed in multiple counterparts, all of which taken 

together, shall be deemed one original. 



Resolution Number 4963 

Exhibit B 

 

DMS_US 39496191v2 

[Remainder of page left intentionally blank; signatures on following page]  



Resolution Number 4963 

Exhibit B 

 

DMS_US 39496191v2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Assignment as of the 

date set forth above. 

ASSIGNOR: 

EXCEL VESTAVIA, LLC,  

a Delaware limited liability company 

 

By: ____________________ 

Name: ____________________ 

Title:   ____________________ 

 

VESTAVIA OUTPARCEL HOLDINGS, LLC,  

an Alabama limited liability company 

 

By: ____________________ 

Name: ____________________ 

Title:   ____________________ 

     

 

ASSIGNEE: 

 

 

VESTAVIA MZL LLC,  

a Delaware limited liability company 

 

 By:  Vestavia Manager LLC 

         Its Manager    

 

 By:  Daniel Partners, LLC 

 Its Manager 

 

 

  By:  _______________________ 

 Daniel Kaufthal 

           Its Manager   

 

This Assignment Agreement is hereby affirmed and consented to by: 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

a municipal corporation 

 

 

By: ________________________ 



Resolution Number 4963 

Exhibit B 

 

DMS_US 39496191v2 

Name: 

Title: 

  



Resolution Number 4963 

Exhibit B 

 

DMS_US 39496191v2 

STATE OF __________ ) 

)  SS: 

COUNTY OF _________ ) 

 

Before me, a Notary Public in and for the County and State referenced above, personally 

appeared ______________________, the ______________ of EXCEL VESTAVIA, LLC, 

who, having been first duly sworn, acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Assignment and 

stated that the representations contained herein are true. 

 

Witness my hand and notarial seal this ____ day of _________________, 2017. 

 

______________________________________ 

Notary Public 

______________________________________ 

Printed Name 

 

My commission expires:________________________. 

 

STATE OF __________ ) 

)  SS: 

COUNTY OF _________ ) 

 

Before me, a Notary Public in and for the County and State referenced above, personally 

appeared ______________________, the ______________ of VESTAVIA OUTPARCEL 

HOLDINGS, LLC, who, having been first duly sworn, acknowledged the execution of the 

foregoing Assignment and stated that the representations contained herein are true. 

 

Witness my hand and notarial seal this ____ day of _________________, 2017. 

 

______________________________________ 

Notary Public 

______________________________________ 

Printed Name 

 

My commission expires:________________________. 

 

 

STATE OF __________ ) 

)  SS: 

COUNTY OF __________ ) 

 

Before me, a Notary Public in and for the County and State referenced above, personally 

appeared ______________________, the ______________ of VESTAVIA MZL LLC, who, 



Resolution Number 4963 

Exhibit B 

 

DMS_US 39496191v2 

having been first duly sworn, acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Assignment and 

stated that the representations contained herein are true. 

 

Witness my hand and notarial seal this ____ day of _________________, 2017. 

 

______________________________________ 

Notary Public 

______________________________________ 

Printed Name 

 

 

My commission expires:________________________. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF __________ ) 

)  SS: 

COUNTY OF __________ ) 

 

Before me, a Notary Public in and for the County and State referenced above, personally 

appeared ______________________, the ______________ of CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 

who, having been first duly sworn, acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Assignment and 

stated that the representations contained herein are true. 

 

Witness my hand and notarial seal this ____ day of _________________, 2017. 

 

______________________________________ 

Notary Public 

______________________________________ 

Printed Name 

 

 

My commission expires:________________________. 

 

























































































































































































































Resolution Number 4962 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4962 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

ALLOCATE FUNDING WITHIN THE GAS TAX FUND BUDGET FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 FOR STREET RESURFACING AND REPAIR 

IN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 

WHEREAS, on August 22, 2016 the City Council adopted and approved Resolution 

Number 4867 adopting a General Fund Budget, a Special Revenue Fund Budget, a Capital 

Project Fund Budget and a Sidewalk Project Fund Budget for the City of Vestavia Hills for fiscal 

year 2016-2017; and 

 WHEREAS, said Special Revenue Fund Budget includes the 07-7 Cent Gasoline Fund; 

and 

 WHEREAS, said 07-7 Cent Gasoline Fund annually includes appropriation of funds to 

allow for street paving, repairs and maintenance; and 

 WHEREAS, on September 12, 2016 the City Council adopted and approved Resolution 

Number 4878 accepting a bid for street resurfacing and repairs with the intent to utilize the FY 

17 budgeted paving funds coupled with the FY 16 end of the year fund balance in Fund 7 to 

cover the projected expense; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s residential paving program for the fiscal year 2017 is now 

complete; and 

 WHEREAS, said completion left a purchase order balance of $89,350.00; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Public Services Director and City Engineer have examined said 

balance and projected fund balance and would like to utilize $45,000.00 of said remaining 

balance for continued road repair and maintenance as needed for the remainder of the fiscal year 

2017; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has examined said fund and recommended the allocation 

of funding from the 07-7 Cent Gasoline Fund to cover the expense for continued road repair and 

maintenance as needed for the remainder of the fiscal year 2017; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed the recommendation and find it 

is in the best public interest to approve that the City Manager allocate funding within the budget 

in order for continued road repair and maintenance. 



Resolution Number 4962 

Page 2 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to allocate money from the 07-7 Cent Gasoline 

Fund for the continued road repair and maintenance in the amount of not to exceed 

$45,000; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4962 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 24
th

 day of July, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 
















	2017_0710CC_A
	2017_0626CC_M
	Resolution 4957
	Resolution 4963
	4963
	ExhibitA
	ExhibitB
	AIG Baker 2001 Aggt Executed

	Resolution 4962
	4962
	Fund 7 Expenditure Authorization 7-5-17




